Public Document Pack

North Yorkshire Council
Children and Young People's Service - Executive Members & Corporate Director Meetings -
Department

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 / 1.00 pm

AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest
Items for Executive Member decision
3 Music Service Arts Council Bid (Pages 3 - 4) (Pages

3-4)

Approval be given to prepare a bid for grant funding to deliver the
National Plan for Music Education for the Arts Council designated
areas of York and North Yorkshire

Items for Corporate Director decision

4 Local Management Of Schools (LMS) Procurement And Contract (Pages
Procedure Rules (Pages 5 - 34) 5-34)

To approve proposed changes to North Yorkshire Council’s Local
Management of Schools (LMS) Procurement and Contract Procedure
Rules

Any Other Business

5 Date of future formal meetings

30 May 2023

20 June 2023

04 July 2023

01 August 2023

05 September 2023
03 October 2023
07 November 2023
05 December 2023

Circulation:

Executive Members Officer attendees Presenting Officers
Janet Sanderson Stuart Carlton

Annabel Wilkinson Howard Emmett

M Sadler

Page 1
OFFICIAL
OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

North Yorkshire Council

Children & Young Peoples Services
Director’s meeting with Executive Members
09/05/23

Music Service bidding to remain as Lead Organisation in the National Plan for Music
Education

Report of the Corporate Director - CYPS

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1  To seek approval for the Music Service to bid for DfE/Arts council funding to remain Lead
Organisation in the Music Hub for North Yorkshire and York.

2.0 Background

2.1  The Music Service is currently the Lead Organisation for the North Yorkshire Music Hub,
which is a partnership between music education organisations delivering a wide range of
opportunities for children in North Yorkshire. Our other partners include NYMAZ, Brass Band
England, Live Music Now as well as schools. We receive a grant of approximately £730K
from the DfE, administered by Arts Council England to deliver the Governments National Plan
for Music Education to schools in North Yorkshire.

2.2 The way funding is being provided is changing. The DfE and Arts Council have decided that
there should be fewer Lead Organisations in its next round of funding. They have redrawn
the map of music hubs to combine areas across the country. We have been paired with York
Music Hub. The successful Lead Organisation for the Music Hub in our area will need to
deliver to York and North Yorkshire from September 2024 onwards.

2.3  The Music Service would like to maintain its position as Lead Organisation but for both hubs
and therefore we are seeking permission to bid for the grant funding that would come with
this role. The bidding process will open in late spring 2023 and close in the summer 2023.

2.4 The full details of the bidding process are not clear at the time of writing; however, we do
know what the role of Lead Organisation will involve, and we have been very successful in
this role for the past 10 years. The bid is open to all. Therefore, it is possible that another
provider could bid and be successful.

3.0 Recommendation
That approval be given to prepare a bid for grant funding to deliver the National Plan for Music

Education for the Arts Council designated areas of York and North Yorkshire

Stuart Carlton, Corporate Director - CYPS
Report Author — lan Bangay
Presenter of Report — lan Bangay

Page 3

OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

North Yorkshire Council

Children & Young Peoples Services
Corporate Director’s meeting with Executive Members

9th May 2023

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNCIL LOCAL MANAGEMENT OF SCHOOLS (LMS)

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Report of the Corporate Director — Strategic Resources

1.0

1.1

Purpose of Report

To present proposed changes to North Yorkshire Council's Local Management of
Schools (LMS) Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules to the CYPS Executive
Members for their consideration and approval.

2.0

2.1

2.2

23

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

Background

North Yorkshire County Council’s Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules (PCPR)
governed how the Council procures goods, works and services and aligns to the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015. With the Local Government Reorganisation concluding at the
end of March 2023, North Yorkshire County Council produced PCPRs for The North
Yorkshire Council (NYC) which were approved by full Council on 24™ February 2023. These
changes, where relevant, have been updated in the LMS Rules.

The latest version of the NYC Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules can be found at
the following link in the NYC Constitution:
Document NYC Constitution - Version 1 - April 2023 | North Yorkshire Council

Furthermore, a Procurement Policy Note (PPN) has been published in January 2023 updating
the legal and policy requirements to publish procurement information on Contracts Finder
and therefore the LMS Rules have been updated to reflect these changes.

Summary of Revisions

The LMS Rules reference North Yorkshire County Council and particular roles within the
Council which will need to be revised as of April 2023 due to the Local Government

Reorganisation.

The contract limits for publication of procurement information onto Contracts Finder has been
amended from £25,000 to £30,000 (inclusive of VAT).

The revised LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules are detailed in Appendix 1.
Funding/Financial Implications

There are no funding issues and the financial implications are that now further action is
required at £30k rather than £25k.

Page 5

OFFICIAL



https://edemocracy.northyorks.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=NYC%20Constitution%20-%20Version%201%20-%20April%202023&ID=419&RPID=1364661

5.0 Legal Implications

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the revised LMS Procurement and Contract
Procedure Rules. The proposed amendments align with the Procurement Policy Note
(PPNO01/23) and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

13.0 Recommendation(s)

i) To consider and approve the revised LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules.

Report Author — Patricia Murphy, Supply Chain Governance and Development Officer, Procurement

and Contract Management
Presenter of Report — Patricia Murphy, Supply Chain Governance and Development Officer,

Procurement and Contract Management

Appendices:
e Appendix 1 - LMS Procurement and Contract Rules (2023.24) TRACK CHANGES

Page 6

OFFICIAL



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

LMS Part 3

Procurement and Contract Procedure

Rules
CONTENTS

1. Introduction

2. General

3. Compliance with Legislation and Standards

4. NOT USED

5. Form of Contract

6. Signature/Sealing of Contracts

7. Bonds and Liquidated Damages

8. Quotes

9. Bids

10. Post Bid Negotiations and Clarification

11. Above Threshold TerdersProcess

12. Options for Above Threshold FendersProcess

13. Receipt and Opening of Above Threshold Tenders
14. Above Threshold Tender Evaluation and Acceptance
15. Certification of Contracts

Reviewed Mareh-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 7

< { Formatted: Space After: 6 pt




Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Exceptions to Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Compliance, Contract Register -and Forward Procurement Plan

16.

17.

18. NOT USED

19. Contract Management
20. Training for Procurement
21. Declaration of Interests
22. Grants

23. Hiring and Engaging Staff
24. Capital Expenditure

25. Leasing Agreements
Reviewed Mareh-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 8



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

The LMS Scheme specifies that Schools are required to abide by these Procurement and
Contract Procedure Rules on purchasing, tendering and other contracting matters, including
the requirement to assess in addition, where relevant, the health and safety and competence
of Contractors taking account of the Council’s policies and procedures on these matters.

These Rules are made by the-North Yorkshire Council on the advice of the S151 Officer €D-
SR-in consultation with the Monitoring OfficerACE(LDS)) under the LMS Scheme. -The LMS
Financial procedure Rules shall be applied in conjunction with these Rules.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 These terms will have the following meanings in the Procurement and Contract
Procedure Rules:-

Above Threshold TenderProcess means the procurement process to be followed
where the estimated whole life value of a Contract
exceeds the relevant WTO GPA Threshold

Above Threshold Tender means a tender submitted as part of an Above Threshold*;,\(f[ Formatted: Font: Bold

.
Process { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Services)
Best Value Form means the form to be completed to capture the rationale«~— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

for not seeking bids in accordance with Rule 8.34

e mesps e Coboopn s Dimmeler Shealocle Docovens «— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

CM means the Contract Manager who is responsible for the«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
contract management role on behalf of the Ceunsil
School

Concession means as defined in Regulation 3(4) of the Concession+— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

Contracts Regulations 2016

Constitution———  means-the Council’'s Constitution-of which-these Rules+— Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98
ferm~par—k cm, Right: 0 cm

Contract means any agreement, excluding a Grant, made<«— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

between the School and any other person which is
intended to be legally enforceable and involves the
acceptance of an offer made by one party to commit itself
to an action or series of actions and subject to the
exceptions in Rule 2.2

Contracts Finder means the web-based portal as described in Chapters 7+— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

& 8 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

ntrac anag A i it i ~_— [ Formatted: Highlight
Practitioners-Group—improving-contract- management standards { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Reviewed-March 2022
OFFICIAL

Page 9



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Contract Register

Contractor

Council

Electronic Signatures

E-Sourcing system

Framework Agreement

Governing Body

Grant

Headteacher

Internal Audit

ITB
ITQ
ITT

means the register of Contracts maintained by the School+— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

as set out in Rule 17.8

means a person or entity with whom the School has a+— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

contract

means North Yorkshire Seunty-Council

“ 4[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

means an advanced electronic signature which is:
(i) uniquely linked to the signatory; and
(i) capable of identifying the signatory; and

(iii) created using means that the signatory can
maintain under his/her sole control; and

(iv)  linked to the data to which it relates in such a
manner that any subsequent change of the data is
detectable.

means the Ceunsil's-School’s chosen E-sourcing system<—[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

{eurrenthy-YORtender)-or an approved alternative

means an agreement with one or more contracting«— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

authorities and one or more economic operator which
establishes an arrangement for:

(i) multiple orders to be placed with one Contractor
(a single supplier framework), or

(ii) a framework of multiple Contractors to engage in
further competitions or direct award (a multiple
supplier framework)

means the Governing Body of a School. «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

means a sum of money awarded_by the ~—— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

GCoeuneilSchool to third parties-in-anticipation-of-it-being

cepliodberonnemndonmens

means the Headteacher of a School. «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

means the Ceuneif's-School’s appointed internal auditors<+— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

{eurrently-Veritaw)

means an Invitation to Bid «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

means an Invitation to Quote «— % Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

means an Invitation to Tender <—[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
OFFICIAL

Page 10



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

o ) U

OFFICIAL

Page 11

Leasing Agreement means a contract for the provision of finance to enable«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
goods or services to be obtained and where ownership in
those goods does not automatically pass to the School at
the end of the contract period
LDSO means a Legal and Democratic Services Officer «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
MEAT means the Most Economically Advantageous Tender
Member means an elected member of the-North Yorkshire Council«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
or co-opted member on a Council committee
Monitoring Officer means North Yorkshire Council’'s appointed Monitoring+— 4[Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Officer, f Formatted: Font: Not Bold
Officer means a School employee or other authorised agent ~ «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Participant means a person or entity participating in a procurement«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
process, who has expressed an interest in tendering for
a Contract or who has tendered for a Contract
PSBO means Public Sector Buying Organisation «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
PCR means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 <—[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Person means any individual, partnership, company, trust, other<— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
local authority, Government department or agency
Property Contract means a contract which creates an estate or interest in+— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
land or buildings
Responsible Officer means the Officer who is responsible for the procurement«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
and/or management of a Contract
Rules means these LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Rules
Scheme of Delegation means a record of all duties and responsibilities as<—{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
delegated under these Rules which is to be maintained
by each School
S$151 Officer means North Yorkshire Council’s appointed S151 Officer, [ Formatted: Font: Not Bold
Services or Supplies means as defined in Regulation 2 of the PCRs — { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Social and Other means those services defined as such in Schedule 3 of «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Specific Services the PCRs
sSQ means the Selection Questionnaire — { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
WTO GPA /{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm
Threshold Jmeans the current threshold above which the PCR’s<~ { Formatted: Font: 11 pt
apply, currently £213,477.00 (Incl. inclusive-of-VAT), for ~——{ Formatted: Font: 11 pt
Reviewed-March 2022



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

services and supplies £663,540.00 (Incl. VAT) inclusive
of VAT for social and other specific services and
£5,336,937.00 for works (Incl. VAT )inelusive-of VAT

Waiver Request Form means the prescribed form to be completed when<«— {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

requesting a waiver in accordance with Rule 16.45

Works means as defined in Regulation 2 of the PCRs

“m 4[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, Hanging: 4.98 cm

These Rules form part of the overall control framework within which Schools operate.
They aim to facilitate sound, innovative service delivery by setting out best practice for
the administration of all procurement and contract management matters, ensuring a
high quality of procurement and contract management information, robust
procurement and contract management and enabling good decision making. -They
should not be viewed as a barrier to executive action and are constantly kept under
review to ensure that they remain relevant to the day-te-dayday-to-day activities of
Schools, and contribute to the delivery of value for money.

References in these Rules to:-

(a) any legislation (e.g. Act, Statutory Instrument, WTO requirement) include a
reference to any amendment or re-enactment of such legislation;

(b) the value of any Contract or Grant are to the total estimated
value payable_(including VAT where applicable) over the full period of the
Contract or Grant including any options or extensions to the Contract or

(ec) the ©B-SRHeadteacher, S151 Officer and the ACE{LBS)Monitoring Officer

___—{ Formatted: Not Highlight

shall be taken to include such Officers as are designated by those officers to
undertake the duties and responsibilities set out in these Rules.

GENERAL

These Rules are made by the-North Yorkshire Council on the advice of the EB-SRS151
Officer (in consultation with the MACE{LBS)onitoring Officer) under the LMS Scheme.
The Council recognises the complexity of some of these Rules and Schools are
therefore encouraged to seek the support available from the Procurement and Contract

Management  Service,—telephone—number__ (—01609-533450, er—email
procurement@northyorks.gov.uk).

These Rules apply to all Grants and Contracts for Works, Supplies, Services or Social
and Other Specific Services but do not apply to:-

(a) contracts of employment;

(b) property contracts (which are covered by the Property Procedure Rules); and

OFFICIAL

Page 12

[ Formatted: No underline, Font colour: Auto



mailto:procurement@northyorks.gov.uk

Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

212

213

2.14

(c) financial instruments (including, but without limitation, shares, bonds, bills of
exchange, future or options contracts) (which are covered by the Financial
Procedure Rules).

The €B-SRS151 Officer (in consultation with the ACE{LBS)Monitoring Officer) shall
regularly review the application and effect of these Rules and shall propose such
updated Rules to the Executive Members for Children & Young People as the CB-
SRS151 Officer may consider appropriate. —The S151 Officer €B-SR—welcomes
feedback on the operation of these Rules to ensure that they both remain effective and
relevant to the day-te-dayday-to-day operational activities of Schools.

NOT USED-
NOT USED
NOT USED
The Headteacher shall ensure that all documentation relating to Contracts, Grants and

procurement processes is retained in accordance with the School’'s Records Retention
and Destruction Schedule.

Where the School has awarded a contract to any person to supervise or otherwise
manage a contract on its behalf such a person shall be required to comply with these
Rules as if they were an Officer of the School.

Wherever appropriate procurement shall be undertaken using the standard documents
contained-in-theProcurement-Manual-applying to SQ’s, ITT’s or ITBs. -Wherever
alternative documents are to be used they must be approved by the Headteacher.

NOT USED

Where the School is procuring in partnership with another contracting authority who
are the lead procurer, the School will follow the lead procurers Procurement and
Contract Procedure Rules or equivalent.

Where the total Grant or Contract value ferprecurementis within the values in the first
column of Tables 1-4, below, the award procedure in the second column must be
followed.

Where a proposed procurement includes two or more types of provision (i.e. Goods,
Services or Works) the value shall be based on the provision that characterises the
main subject of the Contract in question.

NOT USED

OFFICIAL

Page 13



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Table 1: Goods and Services (excluding Social & Other Specific Services)

o LU

o )

Total Contract Transparency . . [~ | Formatted: Left
Value Award Procedure Procedure SlgngtureISeallng d Formatted Table
. . ontract
(including VAT)
£0 ~up to Quotes should be The Responsible One signature: «<[ Formatted: Underline
£2030,833-000 | invited or the Best | Officer will notify the | The Headteacher (or by Formatted: Left
exclusive of Value Form Headteacher of any | an Officer authorised by
VAT process followed in | Contract awarded the Headteacher to sign
accordance with belew-above on the Headteacher's /[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Rule 8. £§29|’8'339‘(£VA behalf). { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
Does not need to w *:jij{ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
be advertised using | to be published on ( Formatted: Left
the E-Sourcing the Contract
system or Reqister.
Contracts Finder.
£208234 - Quotes—sheuld—be | TheResponsible One-signature «—{ Formatted: Left
VAT processfollowed-in | Contractawarded the-Headteacherto-sign
VAT A 4[ Formatted: Left
These-mustbe
published-to Contracts-mustbe — 4[ Formatted: Left
£2530,0004 Bids must be Contracts details One signature: M ﬁ Formatted: Left
exclusive-of invited in must be published The Headteacher (or by | {Forma&ed: Underline
VAT-up to WTO | accordance with on the Contracts an Officer authorised by
GPA Threshold | Rule 9. Register and on the Headteacher to sign
(currently Contracts Finder. on the Headteacher's
£213,477.00; These must be behalf). «—{ Formatted: Left
ipeluchia el advertised using
VAT) the E-Sourcing
system and
Contracts Finder.
Above WTO Follow the Contracts details Jwo signatures: - —{ Formatted: Underline
GPA Threshold | appropriate must be published The Headteacher (or by [ Formatted: Left
(currently procedure as set on the Contracts an Officer authorised by \[ Formatted: Loft
£213,477.00; out in Rules 11 Register, Find a the Headteacher to sign
inclusive-of VAT) | and 12. Tender Service and | on the Headteacher’s
Contracts Finder. behalf).
The opportunity AND — 4( Formatted: Left
must be advertised The +f———f{ Formatted: Left
on the Find a ACE{LDBS)Monitoring
Tender Service Officer (or by an Officer
and Contracts authorised by the
Finder. Monitoring Officer ACE
{LBS)to sign on his
Reviewed-March-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 14



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Total Contract Transparency si ] ~—{ Formatted: Left
Value Award Procedure Procedure bl \
' i Contract Formatted Table
(including VAT)
behalf, as defined in the
Scheme of Delegation).
Sealing (where - Formatted: Underline
appropriate):
Monitoring Officer
ACE(LBS)-(or by an
Officer authorised by the
Monitoring OfficerAGE
{LBS) to sign on his
behalf, as defined in the
Scheme of Delegation)
in accordance with Rule
6.
Table 2: Works & Concessions
Total Contract Transparency Signature/Sealing || Formatted Table
Value (I AREEE IO Procedure Contract ﬁ
£0 ~up to Quotes should be The Responsible One signature: %ﬁ Formatted: Left
£2030,833 invited or the Best | Officer will notify the | The Headteacher (or by \\{ Formatted: Underline
000exclusive-of | Value Form Headteacher of any | an Officer authorised by
VAT process followed in | Contract awarded the Headteacher to sign
accordance with above £5,000 on the Headteacher's
Rule 8. (exclusive of VAT) behalf).
to enable the
Does not need to contract to be — —[ Formatted: Left
be advertised using | published on the
the E-Sourcing Contract Register.
system or ho—Eeesensible
Contracts Finder Officerwill-notify the
Hoodicoshoretan
Contract-awarded
solepeto0 oo
B e
£20,834—- Quotes—sheuld—be | The-Responsible One-signhature A —[ Formatted: Left
LR felese—————In | Cenlmelamded the—mocdionshorte—slon
Fhoco—rape—lbe | MA
sublichoe—— o
CentmelEados Centmete s Lo
published—on—the
Ceptmelodieos
Reviewed-March-2022
OFFICIAL

Page 15



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

o ) U

Table 3: Social & Other Specific Services

Tota\IIContract Award Procedure Transparency Signature/Sealing { Formatted Table
alue Procedure Contract
£2530,0040 Bids must be One signature: *;\(f[ Formatted: Underline
selushre el invited in Contract detailss The Headteacher (or by \{ Formatted: Left
VAT-up to accordance with must be published an Officer authorised by { Formatted: Left
<£1,000,000 Rule 9. on the Contracts the Headteacher to sign
exclusiveof Register and on on the Headteacher’s Formatted: Left
AR These must be Contracts Finder. behalf).
advertised using
the E-Sourcing
system and
published to
Contracts Finder.
£1,000,000 Bids must be Contracts details Sealing: < Formatted: Left
eelushre el invited in must be published Contracts with a value in +{ Formatted: Left
VAT-up to WTO | accordance with on the Contracts excess of £1,000,000
GPA Rule 9. Register and on exelusive-oFVAT-must
Procurement Contracts Finder. be sealed by
Threshold These must be ACE{LDBS)the Monitoring
(currently advertised using Officer (or by an Officer
£5,336,937 the E-Sourcing authorised by the
ipeluche e system and Monitoring Officer ACE
VAT for Works) i {LBS)to sign on his
Contracts Finder. behalf, as defined in the
Scheme of Delegation)
For Contracts with in accordance with Rule [~ Formatted: Left
a value of 6.
£1,000,000
exelusive-ofVAT-or
greater approval
must be sought.
Above WTO Follow the Contracts must be | Sealing: (< Formatted: Left
GPA Threshold | appropriate published on the Contracts must be “{ Formatted: Left
(currently procedure as set Contracts Register, | sealed by ACE(LDBS)the
£5,336,937 out in Rules 11 Find a Tender Monitoring Officer (or by
relusibie et and 12. Service and an Officer authorised by
LLiiferilerks) Contracts Finder.- the Monitoring
The opportunity OfficerAGEALBS) to
must be advertised sign on his behalf, as
on the E-Sourcing defined in the Scheme
system, Find a of Delegation) in
Tender Service and accordance with Rule 6.
Contracts Finder.
. { Formatted: Left

/{ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt
e f Formatted Table

P /{ Formatted: Underline

[ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt

Contract Value | Award Procedure VISR e
Procedure Contract
£0 -up to Quotes should be The Responsible One signature:
£230,833-000 invited or the Best | Officer will notify the
Reviewed-March-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 16

Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

(D | D D




Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

OFFICIAL

Page 17

Contract Value | Award Procedure | Fransparency SlofatieSEaiig ~—{ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt )
Procedure Contract \
exclusive-of Value Form Headteacher of any | The Headteacher (or by [+ Lformatted Table )
VAT process followed in | Contract awarded an Officer authorised by { Formatted: Space After: 0 pt )
accordance with above £5,000 the Headteacher to sign
Rule 8. Does not (exclusive of VAT) {0 | on the Headteacher’s
need to be enable the confract | pepgj),
advertised using to be published on
the E-Sourcin w
9 Regqister.Fhe
system or R ible_Ofi
Contracts Finder inotifythe
Eeoodicoshoreton
Conlractawarded
below £20.833
e /[ Formatted: Font colour: Black ]
£20,834— Quotes-should-be Ihe—ReSPGHSFbJre One-signature s { Formatted: Underline ]
£25.000— invited-orthe-Best | Officerwill-notify-the | The Headteacher(or-by \ Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single
exclusiveof Value Form Headteacherofany | anOfficerauthorised-by
VAT process followed-in | SonRtract-awarded the Headteacherto-sign
accordance-with between£20.834- onthe Headteacher’'s
£25,000-exclusive-of
FReooansE
Contracts Finder. | published-on-the
Cenplracts-Pegister
£2530,0040 up | Bids must be Contracts must be One signature: «————{ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt )
to WTO GPA invited in published on the One-sighature *””*{ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt ]
Threshold accordance with Contracts Register The Headteacher (or by
(currently Rule 9. and on Contracts an Officer authorised by
£663,540 These must be Finder. the Headteacher to sign
inelusive-of\AT) | advertised using on the Headteacher’s
the E-Sourcing behalf).
system and
published-to
Contracts Finder.
Above WTO Follow the Contracts must be | Two signatures: «—{ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt )
GPA Threshold | appropriate published on the The Headteacher (or by \\\{ Formatted: Underline )
(currently procedure as set Contracts Register, | an Officer authorised by
£663,540 out in Rules 11 Find a Tender the Headteacher to sign
ipelusbie o and 12. Service and on the Headteacher’s
VAT) Contracts Finder. behalf, as defined in the
The opportunity Scheme of Delegation). [ 4[ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt ]
must be advertised AND
on the Find a The Monitoring
Tender Service OfficerACE{LDS) (or by
and Contracts an Officer authorised by
Finder. the Monitoring Officer
ACE(LBS)to sign on
Eresdeneiarelh 2000



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Contract Value

Award Procedure

Transparency
Procedure

Signature/Sealing
Contract

[~ 4[ Formatted: Space After:

0 pt

his behalf, as defined in
the Scheme of
Delegation).

Sealing (where

\{ Formatted Table

[ Formatted: Underline

appropriate);

[ Formatted: Underline

ACE({LDBS)Monitoring
Officer (or by an Officer

authorised by the
Monitoring OfficerAGE
{LBS) to sign on his
behalf, as defined in the
Scheme of Delegation)
in accordance with Rule
6.

OFFICIAL

Page 18



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

Table 4: -Grants

U U L )

Total Contract | Award Procedure Signature/Sealing Contracts ﬁ Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt
Value Formatted: Left, Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt
] A competitive application One signature Formatted Table
B process should be completed The Headteacher (or by an Officer \F cted: Loft
yearsAny Value | in accordance with Rule 22. authorised by the Headteacher to \ ormattec: te
sign on the Headteacher'’s Formatted: Left
Cemectesoslientionsdonel | behall) Srociensine <—[ Formatted: Left
= Ceupeins o eins o outherood b ciho Hondinnchosie
competiive appE cations-are
Eomrrarotlke
completed-Where the value

exceeds the WTO GPA
threshold greater approval
must be sought.

Lo i TE 000 | fcoprnotibonnnlien oo Cposienaie A —[ Formatted: Left

The-use-of-Contracts-Finderis
nobiaancaiens
WTO-GPA A-compelitive-process-mustbe | Two-signalures: %ﬁ Formatted: Left
Fhreshold completed: Fhe-Headteachaerforby-an-Officer
Shoeno s Suplb e e crthodoodbacthe Headionehorie
= oeurelas o wlor Al
horsoe s onimele Bline osle | Fhe AR DS e b on Ouen:
A outhedood b ihe Aol o
the-Seheme-ol-Delegation):
. .
Sealing (where-approp .ate)
"QE“:.BS) (or-by-an Office
autho Se.d byt e’, CE (I:.BS) o
si9 EG sbeFaE as d_e e_d
aGGOFdaHGe—WI-th—RH-‘e—s—I O

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION AND STANDARDS

3.1 Every Contract and Grant shall comply with all relevant applicable legislation and
government guidance-ineluding:-.

OFFICIAL

Page 19



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

3.2 Where relevant, every Contract shall specify that materials used, goods provided,
services supplied or works undertaken (as the case may be) shall comply with

applicable standards. -Such-standards-are-in-orderof priority:- {

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm, No
bullets or numbering

~
{b)—British-Standards-implementing-international-standards *\\{

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

©  Britishs {

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm, No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

3.3 In consultation with the ACE{LBS)Monitoring Officer, Headteachers shall ensure that
the School has the

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm,
No bullets or numbering

legal power to enter into any Contract and that in respect of all Contracts, regardless of*[

Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 1.27 cm

e J . U L

whether they involve the procurement or provision by the School of Works, Supplies
or Services Headteachers shall ensure that no Contract shall be entered into which is
ultra vires.

3.4 In respect of grounds and buildings the School shall at all times:-

——a)-Follow the guidance issued by the Property Service and any other guidance «

-| Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

from the Council on the management of risk and health and safety and
(a) security matters;

| Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging:

0.75 cm, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent
at: 1.9cm

——b}-Act on the instructions of the Council as “landlord” (this does not apply to —
(b) Voluntary Aided Schools);

e)-Follow statutory requirements on Health and Safety, Construction (Design

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.52 cm, Hanging:
0.75 cm, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent
at: 1.9cm

and Management) Regulations, Asbestos, Building Regulations, Planning

(c) Approval and other statutory and regulatory requirements; «—

&)-Be responsible for any loss arising from a failure to follow the advice of the

— Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging:

0.75 cm, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent
at: 1.9cm

(d) Council as “landlord” (this does not apply to Voluntary Aided Schools); -

——e¢) Seek the, consent of the Council’s Strategic Planning Team to proposed
building work whatever the source of funds. This must be done through the

| Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging:

0.75 cm, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... +
Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent
at: 1.9 cm

{

——completion of the Project Proposal Form, which is available in the School

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Premises area of the CYPS Info site or can be requested from
——ampsuitability@northyorks.gov.uk, where schools can also request any
(e) advice or guidance which may be required.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent at: 1.9 cm

\ \
\ \
\ \ \

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

4, POWERS AND KEY DECISIONS — NOT USED

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

{
\
\

{

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

o )

5. FORM OF CONTRACT

5.1 Every contract shall be evidenced in writing (by the use of a purchase order, exchange
of correspondence or other written medium). -A signed Contract must be in place on
or before the service commencement date, unless otherwise agreed by the
Headteacher or Governing Body.

Reviewed-March-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 20


mailto:ampsuitability@northyorks.gov.uk

Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

5.2  Wherever appropriate, and for all Contracts exceeding £2530,000 exincluding VAT in
value, such written agreements shall be made on the basis of terms and conditions
agreed by the ACE{LDSMonitoring Officer). —Such terms and conditions may be
incorporated into standard order conditions. -The School may accept different terms
and conditions proposed by a Contractor provided that the advice of the
ACE(LDBS)Monitoring Officer—er—CEB-SR as to their effect has been sought and
considered.

53 The written form of agreement must clearly specify the obligations of the School and
the Contractor and shall include:-

(a) the work to be done or the Supplies, Services or Social and Other Specific
Services to be provided

(b) the standards which will apply to what is provided
(c) the price or other consideration payable

(d) the time in which the Contract is to be carried out

(e) the remedies which will apply to any breach of Contract.

{a)—lfthe Contractor- ‘*4( Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.25 cm

6. SIGNATURE/SEALING OF CONTRACTS

6.1 Every written Contract or Grant must be either signed or sealed in accordance with this

Rule. -The ACE{LDS)Monitoring Officer (or an Officer authorised by the Monitoring
OfficerACE{LDS)) will determine whether a Contract must be signed or sealed.

Reviewed-March-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 21



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

The Headteacher and such of his staff as he may designate are authorised to sign any
such contract_or Grant.

The Monitoring Officer ACE{LDS) also authorises such Contracts_or Grants to be
signed as outlined in Rule 2.12 and; Tables 1-4 and-Rule-1-3{e)-provided that:-

(a) appropriate authority exists for the School to enter into the Contract, and
(b) the Contract is either:-

(i) in a nationally recognised form, or

(ii) a standard form prepared or approved by the-ACE{LDBS)} Monitoring
Officer, or

(iii) is otherwise in a form approved by the-ACE(LDS) Monitoring Officer;
and

(c) any variations to approved forms of Contract must themselves be approved by
the-ACE(LDS) Monitoring Officer, whether erretthey are effected-affected by
amending the Contract itself or by correspondence

Only the Monitoring Officer ACE{LDS}-(or a Legal and Democratic Services’ Officer
(LDSO) authorised by the Monitoring OfficerACE{LDBS}) may seal a Contract on behalf
of the School, in each case being satisfied that there is appropriate authority to do so.
Where agreed by the Monitoring Officer, electronic Deed may be executed by the
Monitoring Officer or a LDSO using the Council’s chosen electronic deeds execution
system.

Signatures may be affixed to a Contract either using physical, handwritten means or
an Electronic Signature, as appropriate and in accordance with UK law.

Electronic Signatures may only be affixed using the Council’s chosen electronic
signature system or an approved alternative, as agreed by the Headteacher.

The use of Electronic Signatures is not permitted in circumstances where:

(a) the Contract is to be sealed_(except where 6.4 applies);

(b) a physical handwritten signature needs to be filed;

(c) there is a proviso in the Contract which prevents the use of an Electronic
Signature;

(d) the Contract may need to be enforced in a jurisdiction where Electronic
Signatures are not accepted;

(e) the Contract needs to be notarised.

BONDS AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

OFFICIAL

Page 22

[ Formatted: Font: Not Bold




Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

71 Where appropriate, the School shall consider whether to include provision for the
payment of liquidated damages by a Contractor for breach of Contract.

7.2 Where considered appropriate by the School, the Contractor will be required to provide
a parent company guarantee / performance bond to secure the performance of the
Contract.- Such performance bonds should provide for a sum of not less than 10% of
the total value of the contract or such other sum as the EB-SRS151 Officer considers
appropriate.

7.3 NOT USED

8. QUOTES

8.1 Where the estimated value of a Contract is £2530,000 exclusive-inclusive of VAT or
less (taking into account the whole life cost of the Contract, including extensions and/or
variations-and-exeluding-VAT) a minimum of three quotes should be sought.- There is
no requirement to use the E-Sourcing system-er-publish-the-eppertunity-en-Contracts

8.2 NOT USED «— 4( Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

8.32 lItis the Responsible Officer’s responsibility to keep a record of quotes sought for audit
purposes and to demonstrate best value has been achieved.

8.43 If three quotes are not sought, the Contract may be directly awarded using the Best
Value Form. -t is the Responsible Officer’s responsibility to complete the Best Value

Form.
9. BIDS
9.1 If the estimated value of a contract exceeds £2530,000 exinclusive of VAT but is less

than the appropriate WTO GPA Threshold, bids must be invited from all potential
Contractors in accordance with Rule 2.12, Tables 1-3.— A notice advertising the
opportunity shall be published through the E-Sourcing System and on Contracts Finder
and, if considered appropriate, a local newspaper and a suitable professional or trade
journal or website. -The form of advertising shall take into account the value, location
and subject matter of the Contract.— The notice shall specify brief details of the
Contract, how the ITB documents may be obtained and the closing date for receipts of
bids by the School.

9.2 All potential Contractors invited to submit bids shall be provided in all instances with
identical information and instructions. -Where considered appropriate, Schools may
permit potential Contractors who have been invited to submit bids under Rule 9.1 to
also submit variant bids (i.e. bids which do not comply with some or all of the
requirements of the primary bid). -The same opportunity to submit variant bids must be
given to all potential Contractors.

9.3 A written bid may only be considered if:-

(a) it has been received electronically through the E-Sourcing System, or

OFFICIAL

Page 23



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8
9.9

9.10

10.

10.1

10.2

(b) (where permitted in exceptional circumstances) it has been received in a sealed
envelope marked “Bid” and indicating the subject matter of the bid and

(c) it has been opened after the expiry of the deadline for submissions and at the
same time as other bids for the same subject matter in the presence of at least
two Officers authorised to open bids.

Before bids with a value in excess of £2350,000 exinclusive of VAT are requested the
evaluation criteria must be recorded in writing in the SQ and/ITB documents.- The
evaluation criteria must be identified and the weighting between price and quality
established and stated in the request for bids sent to participants.

If a bid other than the lowest or the most economically advantageous bid is to be
accepted, the written approval of the Chair of the Governing Body-Geverring-Body)
shall be sought and obtained before the bid is accepted.

A bid cannot be accepted where the value exceeds the relevant WTO GPA Threshold
If the value of the bid exceeds the relevant WTO GPA Threshold the Headteacher
must seek tenders in accordance with Rules 11 and 12.

Before a Contract is awarded after a bid exercise such steps shall be taken by the
Responsible Officer -as are reasonably necessary (having regard to the subject matter,
value, duration_—of the Contract and other relevant factors) to complete a risk
assessment of the potential Contractor’s financial stability.

Bids may be altered only in accordance with Rule 10.

Where a Contract is terminated within the first 6 months of the Contract
commencement date, the School may award the Contract to the second placed
supplier, provided that this demonstrates Best Value and with agreement from the
Headteacher, in consultation with the Governing Body.

The evaluation of bids shall be carried out by a panel of suitably qualified Officers who
are considered appropriate having regard for the subject matter and value of the
Contract.

POST BID NEGOTIATION AND CLARIFICATION

Post bid negotiations may not be undertaken where the value of the Contract exceeds
the relevant WTO GPA Threshold.- If the value of the bid exceeds the relevant WTO
GPA Threshold, the School must invite tenders in accordance with Rules 11 and 12.
Post bid negotiations with selected Participants shall only be carried out where:-

(a) post tender negotiations are permitted by law; and

(b) the Headteacher in consultation with the Governing Body considers that added
value may be obtained; and

(c) post bid negotiations are conducted by a team of suitably experienced Officers
approved by the Headteacher and who have been trained in post bid
negotiations; and

OFFICIAL

Page 24



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

10.3

1.

1.3

11.5

(d) a comprehensive, written record of the post bid negotiations is kept by the
Responsible Officer; and

(e) a clear record of the added value to be obtained as a result of the post bid
negotiations is incorporated into the Contract with the successful Participant.

Rules 10.1 and 10.2 shall not operate to prevent clarification of all or part of any bid
to the extent permitted by law and where such clarifications are sought the provisions
of Rules 10.2(c) and 10.2(d) shall apply, except that the word “clarification” shall be
substituted for the word "negotiation" in these Rules.

ABOVE THRESHOLD TENDERS
Where the estimated value of the Tenders-for Contracts which-exceed the WTO GPA

Procurement-Threshold, Above Threshold Tenders shall be invited and awarded in
accordance with the PCRs and as prescribed in Rule 11 and 12.

General Requirements

Before an Above Threshold Tender is requested the evaluation criteria to be applied
to the Above Threshold Tender must be recorded in writing in the SQ and/or ITT
document.- The evaluation criteria must be identified and the weighting between price
and quality established and stated in the SQ and/or ITT sent to Participants.

Irrespective of the procurement process being undertaken a notice must be published
on the Find A-a Tender Service system_and Contracts Finder, where possible this
should be through the E-Sourcing systemsystem, or an appropriate alternative system
as agreed by the Headteacher.

All Participants invited to submit Above Threshold Tenders shall be provided in all
instances with identical instructions and information.

Where considered appropriate, the School may permit Participants to submit variant
Above Threshold Tenders (i.e. tenders which do not comply with some or all-efall the
requirements of the primary tender).- The same opportunity to submit variant Above
Threshold Tenders shall be given to all Participants.- Variant Above Threshold Tenders
shall only be considered if the Participant also submits a compliant primary tender.

The evaluation of the Above Threshold Tender submissions shall be carried out by
Officers who are considered appropriate having regard for the subject matter and value
of the Contract.

All Fenders—procurements undertaken in accordance with Rule 11 shall have a
minimum of 3 appropriate Officers to undertake the evaluation process. —The
evaluation process will include:

Individual evaluation assessment and scoring
Consensus marking exercise
MederatienIndependent review, where required

IndependentverificationModeration by the evaluation panel, where required.

All evaluation panel members must have completed appropriate evaluation training
prior to completing any evaluation process.

OFFICIAL

Page 25



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

11.9

12,

12.1

12.2

13.

13.1

Where a Contract is terminated within the first 6 months of the Contract
commencement date, the School may award the contract to the second placed supplier
with agreement from the Headteacher in consultation with the Chair of the Governing
Body, provided that this demonstrated Best Value and none of the original award
criteria has changed.

OPTIONS FOR ABOVE THRESHOLD TENDERS
The School shall identify which of the following Above Threshold Tender Procedures

shall be used to invite tenders for Contracts with a value in excess of the relevant WTO
GPA Procurement Threshold:

(i) the Open Procedure (as prescribed by Regulation 27)

“ {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.23 cm

—(ii) the Restricted Procedure (as prescribed by Regulation 28) «— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.23 cm

(iii) the Competitive Procedure with Negotiation (as prescribed by
Regulation 29)

(iv) the Competitive Dialogue Procedure (as prescribed by Regulation 30)

(v) the Innovation Partnership Procurement (as prescribed by
Regulation 31)

(vi) use of the Negotiated Procedure without prior publication (as prescribed by
Regulation 32)

(vii)  Social and Other Specific Services (Light Touch Regime) (as prescribed by<. [ Formatted: Font: Arial

Regulations 74-76)

and such identified process shall be used for the invitation of Above Threshold Tenders
in accordance with the requirements of the PCR’s.

The School shall also identify which of the following techniques and instruments which
can be used for Electronic and Aggregated Procurements:

(i) Framework Agreement (as prescribed by Regulation 33)
(ii) Dynamic Purchasing System (as prescribed by Regulation 34)
(iii) Electronic auctions (as prescribed by Regulation 35)

(iv) Electronic catalogues (as prescribed by Regulation 36)

RECEIPT AND OPENING OF ABOVE THRESHOLD TENDERS

A written above Threshold Tender may only be considered if:-

(a) it has been received electronically through the E-Sourcing System, or (where
permitted in exceptional circumstances, and subject to agreement by the

Headteacher) it has been received electronically through an appropriate
alternative method, such as a secure email inboxj; or

OFFICIAL

Page 26

b

)

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1.23 cm, Hanging: 1.27
cm

|




Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

14,

14.1

14.42

(b) -{where permitted under Regulation 84(h)) it has been received in hard copy in
a sealed envelope marked “Above Threshold Tender” and indicating the
subject matter of the Above Threshold Tender, and the identity of the
Participant cannot be ascertained from the tender envelope; and

(c) (subject to Rule 13.4) it has been received by the Above Threshold Tender
closing date and time.

The Headteacher (or a person designated—by—him) shall be responsible for the
reception and safe custody of- Above Threshold Tenders until they are opened.

Electronically-submitted-Above Threshold Tenders, whether electronic or hard copy,
must be opened at the same time, in an auditable way, by an independent Officer.-

Where permitted under {where—permitted-under-Regulation 84(h) of the PCRs and
Above Threshold Tenders are returned in hard copy format a written record shall be
maintained by the Headteacher, of the Above Threshold Tenders received. Such a
record shall include the date and time of Above Threshold Tender opening, the identity
of the Officer(s) present, the identities of Participants and the tendered sums (where
readily ascertainable).

Above Threshold Tenders submitted in hard copy must be opened at the same time
and in the presence of the Headteacher (or a person designated-by-him) or, where the
Procurement and Contract Management Services is undertaking the procurement, the

ACE(LDBS)Monitoring Officer (or an Officer designated-by-him).

If an Above Threshold Tender is received after the specified closing date and time it
may not be considered unless the Headteacher is satisfied that the Above Threshold
Tender was submitted electronically or posted or otherwise dispatched in sufficient
time to be delivered before the specified time but that delivery was prevented by an
event beyond the control of the Participant.

ABOVE THRESHOLD TENDER EVALUATION AND ACCEPTANCE

The Responsible Officer shall evaluate Above Threshold Tenders using the evaluation
criteria published in accordance with Rule 11.2.

Before a Contract is awarded the School shall, determine whether it is proportionate
and appropriate to complete a risk assessment to ascertain the financial stability of the
successful Participant.- The risk assessment shall take into account the subject matter,
complexity, duration, value and any other such factors as may be deemed to be
relevant.

OFFICIAL

Page 27



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

14.53 On completion of the evaluation of the Above Threshold Tenders received and once
all internal approvals have been obtained, the School shall write to all Participants
informing them of the outcome of the Above Threshold Tender evaluation and
providing feedback on the content of their submission, in accordance with
Regulation 55 of the PCR’s.

14.64 The School shall wait a minimum of ten days (15 days if not sent electronically) from
the date of issue of the letters notifying the Participants of the result of the evaluation
before completing the Contract with the successful Participant, except where not
required for example for call-offs under an existing Framework.-

14.75 The School shall send for publication a Contract Award Notice to Find a Tender Service
stating the outcome of the procurement procedure no more than 30 days after the
award of the Contract.

15. CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTS — NOT USED

16. EXCEPTIONS TO PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

16.1 A School does not need to invite bids in accordance with Rule 9 in the following
circumstances:-

(a) purchases via Framework Agreements which have been established either by
the Council or by other public sector bodies or consortia (including, but not
limited to PSBOs) and where such framework agreements are lawfully
accessible to the School.— Contracts awarded from such Framework
Agreements shall be awarded in accordance with the provisions of that
Framework Agreement; or

(b) the instruction of Counsel by the ACE{LBSMonitoring Officer); or

(c) where funding is received by the School, either in its own right or as an
accountable body, and the terms of such grant or other external funding state
that it must be applied in accordance with those terms; or

(d) purchases at public auctions (including internet auction sites, e.g. EbayeBay)
where the School is satisfied that value for money will be achieved; or

(e) the purchase of Supplies, Works, Services or Social and Other Specific
Services which are of such a specialised nature as to be obtainable from one
Contractor only; or

(f) repairs to or the supply of parts for existing proprietary machinery or plant where
to obtain such supplies from an alternative supplier would invalidate the
warranty or contractual provisions with the existing supplier; or

(9) Social or Other Specific Services Contracts where:-

(i) the service is currently supplied by a Contractor to the satisfaction of
the School, is considered to be offering value for money and where the

Eresdeneiarelh 2000

OFFICIAL

Page 28



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

foreseeable disruption to service users cannot justify the invitation of
further bids, or

(ii) the service is of a specialist or personal nature and where service users
must be involved in the selection of the Contractor and where the
School considers it inappropriate for bids to be invited, or

(iii) where the School is satisfied that the urgency of the need for the service«— { Formatted: Indent: Left: 2.54 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

prevents the invitation of bids in which case consideration shall be given
to the duration of that service; or

(h) Contracts where the School- deems that for reasons of extreme urgency
brought about by unforeseeable events unattributable to the School, the
timescales for obtaining bids cannot be met. —A written record shall be signed
and dated by the Chair of the Governing Body, whenever this Rule applies.

16.2 Where any of the exceptions set out in (d) to (h) above are applied a written record
shall be signed, dated and kept. -The Headteacher shall maintain a register of all
recommendations made under this Rule.

16.3 The School does not need to invite Bids in relation to Pilot schemes, where below WTO
GPA threshold, in relation to proof of concept / trialling a produce or are of innovation.

16.4 A School does not need to invite Above Threshold Tenders in accordance with Rule
11 and 12, in the following circumstances:

(a) purchases via Framework Agreements which have been established either by
the Council or by other public sector bodies or consortia (including, but not
limited to PSBO’s) and where such Framework Agreements are lawfully
accessible to the School.— Contracts awarded from such Framework
Agreements shall be awarded in accordance with the provisions of that
Framework Agreement.- Where appropriate Officers should apply a minimum
10 day standstill period for all call-off Contracts awarded under an existing
Framework Agreement. -This is not mandatory but is deemed best practice; or

(b) where:
(i) Regulations 12 or 72 of the PCRs apply; or
(ii) any other specific exclusions as set out in the PCRs apply;
and the-ACE{LDS) Monitoring Officer, the Headteacher and Chair of the
Governing Body are in agreement. -A written record shall be signed and dated

whenever this Rule applies and the Headteacher shall maintain a register of
such written records.

Waivers

16.45 Specific exceptions to Rule-9these Rules are permitted in such other circumstances
as the Headteacher and the-Chair of the Governing Body may agree.

16.56 Requests for waivers shall be made using the Waiver Request Form prescribed by the
EB-SRS151 Officer which shall specify the reasons for the request.

16.67 The Headteacher shall maintain a register of all waivers made under this Rule.

Reviewed-March-2022
OFFICIAL

Page 29



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

16.78— Specific exceptions to Rule 22.4 are permitted in such other circumstances as
the €B-SRS151 Officer and the ACE{LBS)Monitoring Officer may agree.

17. COMPLIANCE, CONTRACT REGISTER AND FORWARD PROCUREMENT
PLANS

17.1  Every Officer shall comply with these Rules and any unauthorised failure to do so may
lead to disciplinary action.

17.2 The CHeadteacher shall be responsible for monitoring adherence to these Rules.

17.3 NOT USED.

17.4 Eaeh-The Headteacher shall take all such steps as are reasonably necessary to ensure
that Officers within their School are aware of and comply with these Rules.-

17.75 NOT USED.

17.68 The School shall maintain a Contract Register the purpose of which is to record key
details of all Contracts with an aggregate value of £25,000 exclusive of VAT or more.

17.79 All Responsible Officers will notify the Headteacher of any Contract awarded below
above £25000 exclusive of VAT. The Responsible Officer will use the format
prescribed by the Headteacher and report this information quarterly.

17.840 The Headteacher shall ensure that:-

(a) all relevant Contracts (including those Contracts to which Rule 16 applies) are
entered onto the Contract Register; and

(b) the Contract Register is maintained by entering new Contracts onto it and
removing expired Contracts from it in line with the School’s Records Retention
and Destruction Schedule.

Contracts Finder

17.941 When a Procurement leading to a Contract in excess of £2530,000 including VAT is

awarded the School shall ensure that such information as is prescribed in the PCRs is

published on Contracts Finder—via-the-E-Seurcing-system.- This-does—net-apply-to

18. GATEWAY PROCESS REPORTS INCLUDING NOTIFICATION OF
SECTION 151 OFFICER AND MONITORING OFFICER — NOT USED

NOTUSED

OFFICIAL

Page 30



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

20.

201

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

The Responsible Officer shall take all such steps as are appropriate to monitor and
review the performance of the Contract, having regard to its value, nature, duration
and subject matter.- As part of the monitoring and review process the Responsible
Officer shall maintain adequate records of Contract performance and details of review
meetings with the Contractor.- Such records and details shall be made available to
Internal Audit whenever required.-Suchrecerdsshall-alse-be-used-en-the basisforany
permitted-extension to the Contract.

Where appropriate the Responsible Officer involved in contract management shall
have received a level of formal training commensurate with the nature of the contract.

NOT USED
Contract Variation

Contracts with a value below the relevant WTO GPA Precurement-Threshold may be
varied or extended in accordance with the terms of that Contract.— Any proposed
variations which have the effect of materially changing the Contract must be approved
by the -ACE(LBS)Monitoring Officer, whether or not they are effested-affected by
amending the Contract itself or by correspondence.

Contracts with a value in excess of the relevant WTO GPA Precurement-Threshold
may be varied or extended in accordance with the terms of that Contract or as outlined
in Regulation 72 of the PCRs._Approvals must be sought by the Headteacher and

Governing Body.

Contract Termination

If an Officer requires a Contract which exceeds the financial values stated in Rule 18.2

[ Formatted: Font: Bold

of thePublicCentractThreshelds—to be terminated then this must be done in
accordance with the terms of the Contract er-and in accordance with the as-eutlined-in

Regulation72-ef the-PCRs, where applicable. —~Approvals must be sought by the
Headteacher and Governing Body.

TRAINING FOR PROCUREMENT

Where appropriate any Officer involved in procurement activities shall have received
a level of formal training commensurate with the nature of the procurement activity
being undertaken.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

A Confllct of Interest declaratlon must be
completed by all members of the evaluatlon panel upon commencement of the project.
A Confidentiality Agreement or Declaration form must also be completed by any
members of the evaluation panel who are not directly employed by the School, unless
there are alternative appropriate confidentiality provisions within the persons
appointment documents (such as a consultancy agreement).

OFFICIAL

Page 31



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

21.2 If it comes to the knowledge of a Member, Responsible Officer or other Officer that a
Contract in which they have an interest (determined in accordance with the Members’
and/or Officers’ Code of Conduct as appropriate) has been or is proposed to be
entered into by the Council, they shall immediately give written notice to the
Headteacher.

22. GRANTS

22.1 A grantis a sum of funds for a specific purpose. Under a grant agreement, the funder
makes a payment to the recipient for a specific purpose. The recipient is not obliged to
deliver any goods or services to the funder. The School may grant-fund third party
organisations for _example to help deliver community cohesion or to provide
complementary activities. Responsible Officers should in _consultation with the
Council’'s Procurement and Contract Management Service and Monitoring Officer
understand if the Grant is subject to the PCRs.

22.42 A competitive grants process should be completed and subsidy control law complied
with. Where appropriate, the opportunity should be advertised on the E-Sourcing

22.64 The Responsible Officer shall take all such steps as are appropriate to monitor and
review the performanee-delivery of the grant agreement, having regard to its value,
nature, duration and subject matter.— As part of the Ggrant monitoring and review
process the Responsible Officer shall maintain adequate records of perfermance
delivery and details of review meetings with the grant recipient.

23. HIRING AND ENGAGING STAFF

OFFICIAL

Page 32



Part 3 — LMS Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules

231

Where an Officer is hiring or engaging a staff member who is not on the School’s
payroll there is a legal requirement to determine whether it is the responsibility of the
School to deduct tax and national insurance at source, in accordance with the
requirements of the Social Security Contributions (Intermediaries) Regulations 2000,
as amended (IR35).

SCHOOL SPECIFIC RULES

24,

241

242

24.3

25—

251

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Governing Bodies are permitted to use their budget share to meet the cost of capital
expenditure on School premises.- The annual Devolved Formula Capital allocation to
the School must be used in accordance with any rules and conditions specified as a
condition of the award of the grant and can only be used for capital expenditure.

A Governing Body shall provide timely information, as required by the €B-SRS151
Officer, for the allocation, monitoring, accounting and claiming of grant in respect of
any and all other capital funding allocated or devolved to the School.

The School may accumulate its Devolved Formula Capital over no more than a three
year rolling period to use on a project of a value greater than its annual allocation; that
is, the current financial year plus the previous two. Any unused Devolved Formula
Capital Grant which is older than this is subject to clawback by the Department for
Education.

LEASING AGREEMENTS

As the nature of these Leasing Agreements may conflict with the Council’s position
regarding the application of Government capital expenditure controls any such
agreements must meet the following criteria:

a) The agreement must not allow the School to become the owner of the
equipment; in other words, the School cannot buy the equipment at any stage
from the lessor.

b) The duration of the agreement must be short enough for the estimated value
of the equipment at the end of the agreement period to be at least 10% of its
initial cost.- This condition must be specified in the agreement.- An agreement
for a large, heavily used photocopier, for example, should probably not exceed
three years.

c) The agreement must not give the School an automatic right to continue with
the lease at the end of the agreement period.- However, if the Governing Body
wishes to extend the agreement this can be arranged subsequently at an open
market rental.

d) Any sale proceeds arising from the disposal of equipment is payable to the
leasing company and not to the School.

e) The new lease cannot be used to settle any outstanding debt on a previous
lease arrangement.

Reviewed-March-2022

OFFICIAL

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Music Service Arts Council Bid
	4 Local Management Of Schools (LMS) Procurement And Contract Procedure Rules
	Exec Members - LMS Procurement and Contract Rules 2023.24
	Appendix 1 - LMS Procurement and Contract Rules (2023.24) TRACK CHANGES
	13. receipt and opening of ABOVE THRESHOLD tenders



